
 
 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
FINAL OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Miami-Dade Military Affairs Board 
 
 

City of Doral City Hall 
8401 NW 53rd Terrace 

Doral, FL 33166 
 

September 4, 2013 
As Advertised 

  
 

Harvey Ruvin, Clerk 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
Christopher Agrippa, Director 
Clerk of the Board Division 

 
Mary Smith-York, Commission Reporter 

(305) 375-1598 
 



CLERK’S SUMMARY AND OFFICIAL MINUTES 
MILITARY AFFAIRS BOARD 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2013 
 
 
The Military Affairs Board (MAB) convened in a meeting on Wednesday, September 4, 2013, at 
6:02 p.m., in the City of Doral, City Hall, 8401 NW 53rd Terrace, Doral, Florida, 33166.   
 
The following Voting Board Members were present:  Commissioner Jose “Pepe” Diaz, 
Chairman; Dr. Anthony Atwood; David Conley; Eddy Fonseca, Jr.; Diana Gonzalez; Manuel 
Gonzalez; Kevin Humes; Charles Johnson; Joseph Martory; and Christopher Miller.  
 
The following Voting Board Members arrived late:  Mario Alvarez and David Blake 
 
The following Voting Board Members were absent:  Mark Blumstein; Councilman Timothy 
Daubert; Thomas Davis; Jorge Sibila; Don Slesnick, II; and Keith Whitbeck. 
 
The following Non-voting Board Members were present:  Major Brooke Cortez, Sergeant Eddy 
Fonseca, Jr; Colonel Morris Hatcher; Eduardo Lombard; and Paul Russo. 
 
The following Non-voting Board Member was late: Ed Haynes  
 
The following Non-voting Board Members were absent:  Glorianne Amor; Captain Mark 
Jackson; City of Doral Vice Mayor Sandra Ruiz; and Joanna Sandstrom. 
 
The following Staff members were present:  Gustavo Cruz, MAB Director; Assistant County 
Attorney Miguel Gonzalez; and Deputy Clerk Mary Smith-York. 
 
The following guests were also present:  Paul Hernandez, Miami-Dade Police Department/Board 
of County Commissioners; William Nicholas and Nervil Scheably, ABC Supply Mart; Scottie 
Moore, United States (U.S.) Army Garrison-Miami/USSOUTHCOM; and Angel Rodriguez, 
Armed Forces Service Center. 
 

1. Welcome: 

Chairman Diaz welcomed members and guests to tonight’s (9/4) Military Affairs Board (MAB) 
meeting. 

2. Moment of Silence / Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Diaz asked Mr. Kevin Humes to lead the MAB in a moment of prayer, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Joseph Martory.  

3. Board Member Roundtable 

Chairman Diaz asked MAB members to introduce themselves and provide a brief overview of 
their organizations and current programs. 

September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 1 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



Mr. Paul Russo, representing Miami Veterans’ Administration Healthcare System, distributed 
copies of a document on Veterans Affairs (VA) and the Affordable Care Act (ACA) to Board 
members and noted that this information was designed to describe the ACA, explain the VA’s 
role in it, and to address frequently asked questions.  He explained that veterans currently in the 
VA were essentially enrolled in a health care program that met the ACA requirements and no 
further action was required, unless they chose a different option under the ACA.  Mr. Russo 
advised that this information would be sent to Congressional Offices, Military Department of 
Defense partners, State Representatives, and Veterans. 

Chairman Diaz asked that this information be provided to Director Gustavo Cruz so he could 
make it available on the MAB’s website. 

Mr. Joseph Martory, representing Board of County Commissioners Chairwoman Rebeca Sosa-
District 6, noted he would distribute information to MAB Board members later in the meeting 
and announced that the 16th National Vietnam Veterans of America (V.V.A.) Convention held in 
Jacksonville, Florida, August 13-17, 2013, was a success.   Mr. Martory indicated that he had 
provided the provisions for the Veterans’ Day Parade to MAB Director Cruz and noted he 
desired to see one of the veterans’ organizations open the parade.  He commented that the VVA, 
in Jacksonville, secured room rates of $79 at the Hyatt for Convention attendees and asked that 
efforts be made to provide similar rates for parade attendees, particularly Professor Atwood’s 
attendees.  Mr. Martory announced that the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW) 10212, American 
Legion 326, Vietnam Veterans of America (VVA) Chapter 620, and Cuban American Veterans 
Association would host the Veterans Valentine’s Dinner Dance on February 8, 2014, at the 
Miami Elks Lodge #948, 10301 Sunset Drive, Miami, Florida and provided the information to 
Director Cruz for distribution to MAB members. 

 

Mr. Manual Gonzalez, representing County Commissioner Javier Souto-District 10, noted 
Commissioner Souto wished to reiterate his previous discussion regarding the invitation for the 
County to participate in June 2014 celebration of the 70th Anniversary of the Normandy Invasion 
(D-Day).  

In response to Dr. Anthony Atwood’s repeating his offer made, at the last meeting, to volunteer 
his services for this event, in any capacity, MAB Director Gustavo Cruz advised that 
Commissioner Souto’s office was working with Dr. Atwood to organize a Sunshine meeting in 
October 2013 to discuss this issue.   He noted several angles were proposed for this event and 
that a delegation of World War II Veterans from Miami-Dade County, as well as the families of 
WWII veterans was being considered to represent the County at the event.   
 
Chairman Diaz asked that a general discussion regarding the 70th Anniversary of the Normandy 
Invasion be scheduled in preparation for the forthcoming Sunshine meeting with Commissioner 
Souto.  
 
Assistant County Attorney Miguel Gonzalez introduced himself and provided a synopsis of his 
educational and professional background.  

September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 2 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



Ms. Diana Gonzalez, Miami-Dade Defense Alliance Coordinator (MDDA), announced that the 
MDDA had just submitted two grants:  

1) For ongoing operations of the MDDA, including funding to do a shared services tabletop 
exercise that would include Coastguard, Homestead, and SOUTHCOM, to discuss issues 
of mutual interest to determine how services could be shared with mutual benefit; the Air 
Force was implementing this initiative across country;  

2) Applied to the Florida Defense Support Task Force (FDSTF) for development of a 
strategic plan for advocacy on behalf of the military industry in Miami-Dade County that 
would engage the services of a lobbyist currently in Washington, D.C. 

 
Ms. Gonzalez also noted this Saturday (9/7) the MDDA would participate in the Spouse 
Symposium event at SOUTHCOM, from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and in October 2013, the 
FDSTF would hold its meeting at the Homestead Air Reserve Base. 

 
Mr. Christopher Miller, representing County Commissioner Xavier Suarez-District 7, reported 
that Building 8410 was secure and advised that he had begun dialogue with representatives of the 
Naval Reserve regarding personnel resources for the Veterans Day Parade. 
 
Mr. Angel Rodriguez, representing the Armed Forces Service Center (AFSC), stated the AFSC 
was better known as the Military Hospitality at the Airport, and its goal was to provide relaxation 
and comfort for all servicemen and servicewomen travelling alone or with family.  He 
commented that Chairman Diaz and other County Commissioners were responsible for the newly 
renovated facility and invited members of the MAB to volunteer their services at the AFSC. 

 
MAB Director Cruz noted staff was in the process of developing the Grand Reopening 
Ceremony for the facility and once the date was established, he would inform all MAB members. 
 
Mr. Eduardo Lombard, representing County Commissioner Juan Zapata-District 11, advised that 
the “Toys for Tots” Program was scheduled to begin in September under the leadership of 
Sergeant Eddy Fonseca, Jr.  He expressed his appreciation to Commissioner Diaz for the names 
of veterans for special interviewing and asked that Board members provide Mr. John Phillips, a 
WW2 Veteran Marine, with their support for his wife, recuperating from a fall, at Baptist 
Hospital. 
 
Mr. Martory commended Mr. Paul Russo for communicating personally with veterans who visit 
and/or call his organization and commented on the impact this type of personal interaction with 
veterans by a VA Healthcare System Director had on veterans.  On behalf of VVA 620, he also 
distributed to MAB members wooden replicas of the triangular folded American Flag with 
contact information for the Department of Veterans Affairs National Cemetery Administration. 

 
4. Old Business 
 

a. Golden Veterans Parade Update 
 

Chairman Diaz advised that Ms. Gloria Garces was absent today (9/4) in observance of her 
birthday.  He reported that Resolution No. R-635-13, commemorating the 50th Anniversary of 

September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 3 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



the Vietnam War Veterans and supporting the November 8, 2013 Parade, was adopted by the 
Board of County Commissioners on July 16, 2013.  He recognized those MAB members and 
staff who contributed towards this effort and expressed his gratitude for their support.  Chairman 
Diaz welcomed Mr. Mario Alvarez, representing County Mayor Carlos Gimenez.  He 
commented on how this event seemed to be growing to new levels.  Informing members that an 
informational package was completed and submitted to MAB Board members, Chairman Diaz 
advised that he was working to secure funding from a large, national organization as a sponsor, 
and emphasized the importance of acquiring funding at this time.  He stated a response from that 
organization was expected by the end of this week and noted this would provide funding for a 
major group to perform a concert.  Chairman Diaz summarized the planned activities, stating that 
a full-fledged ticker tape parade would commence around noon on November 8, 2013, and 
would culminate at Bayfront Park with a concert.  He indicated that several groups and chambers 
of commerce were invited to help make this event a success; and that efforts were in progress to 
ensure the History and Military television stations provided coverage for this effort.  Chairman 
Diaz stated that packages had been provided to Univision and Telemundo Latin Television 
Broadcasting Companies, requesting that veterans be recognized for their service to the country 
on the level as that given to the sports teams.  He identified some of the entertainment groups 
being invited to perform and local sports teams tentatively scheduled to participate.   
 
Director Cruz stated he had contacted Lieutenant Colonel Son P. Vo (phonetic) of the Army 
ROTC Programs at the University of Miami and Florida International University, as well as 
representatives at two of the County’s top Junior ROTC programs: North Miami Beach High 
School and American High School.  He advised a meeting was scheduled for this week with the 
Downtown Development Authority to request assistance with barricades for parade and noted 
that he contacted the Miami Parking Authority regarding the need to accommodate police 
officers and the use of Lot 14 alongside Bayside, as staging area.   Mr. Cruz stated he obtained a 
quote for the additional port-a-potties needed for the amphitheater and surrounding the area. 

Chairman Diaz noted that, in addition to the main stage, an additional stage would be donated 
and placed near the fountain in Bayfront Park, complete with an audio system, to accommodate 
the growing number of veterans, currently around 70,000.   

Mr. Martory advised that, according to State of Florida’s records, approximately 72,000 veterans 
currently resided in Miami-Dade County.  

Chairman Diaz pointed out that the number of veterans within Miami-Dade, Broward, and 
Monroe Counties was approximately 50,000, and noted that number would increase to include 
family members and weekend revelers.  He informed members that one group consisting of all 
War Veterans agreed to provide a free performance for this event.   

Ms. Diane Gonzalez advised that at the last Chamber South meeting, approximated three 
different groups expressed an interest in participating in the parade physically and via 
sponsorship.  She advised that she would provide sponsorship packages to those groups at the 
next Chamber South meeting to obtain their official commitments.  Additionally, Ms. Gonzalez 
advised of the potential for participation by the Junior ROTC programs at Homestead and South 
Dade High Schools; however, this could present a slight scheduling conflict as a parade was 
scheduled in Homestead a few days later than this event.  She stated she would be meeting with   

September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 4 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



Ms. Rose Brito, Executive Director, Greater Homestead Florida City Chamber of Commerce 
regarding the organization’s level of involvement in this event.   

Discussion ensued among Board members and Director Cruz regarding various other entities that 
would provide support and participation for the parade, including Miami-Dade Police and 
Florida Highway Patrol providing motorcycles and Mounted Patrol to enhance the level of safety 
and security.   

Dr. Atwood advised that the American Legion Riders had motorcycles and would participate if 
asked and noted he concurred with the earlier comment regarding hotel rooms being provided at 
a discounted rate being a good incentive for participation. 

Colonel Hatcher informed members that two Reserve Units were willing to participate by 
providing equipment and stated he would request a lieutenant to submit photographs of the types 
of equipment available to Chairman Diaz.  

Chairman Diaz noted he met with several veterans of the Bay of Pigs and informed of the entire 
group’s willingness to participate and encouraged MAB members to continue working to make 
this a successful event. 

5. New Business 
 

a. Resolution to BCC to Add 2 Board Positions for Chambers of Commerce 

Chairman Diaz announced that the County Commission adopted on first reading the proposed 
ordinance (Agenda Item 14A1; Legislative File No. 131720) amending membership of the MAB 
to include one appointed member from each, the Chamber South and the Greater 
Homestead/Florida City Chamber.   He expressed appreciation to Ms. Gonzalez for her 
assistance in getting these two Chambers involved with the MAB and stated he would request 
the BCC Chairwoman to waive the BCC’s rules to expedite the final adoption process.   

b. Remembering our Fallen Heroes Ceremony 

Chairman Diaz commended Mr. Cruz, MAB Director, on his initiative to bring forth a great idea 
and asked him to provide details. 

Mr. Gustavo Cruz, Director, MAB, informed members that in an effort to promote the MAB 
from the County level, the idea to have TAPS played one Friday each month at 12:00 noon to 
provide exposure of the sacrifices the men and women of the military had made for this Country.  
He listed several veterans who attended and noted he would make provide copies of the video 
recorded by the Miami-Dade’s Communications Department (MDTV) as soon as it was 
available.  Mr. Cruz stated this event would recognize a different branch of the military each 
month, except September, when the Police Benevolent Association displayed an exhibit 
honoring fallen police officers.  He expressed confidence that the event was well-received and 
expressed his appreciation to Dr. Atwood and Mr. Martory for their assistance in making this a 
great success. 

Chairman Diaz recognized Ms. Debbie Zimmerman, Chief of Staff for U.S. Congresswoman 
Ileana Ros-Lehtinen.   
September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 5 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



c. Coca-Cola Boot Camp Program 
 

Chairman Diaz noted the Coca-Cola Boot Camp Program was funded by a grant donated by the 
Coco-Cola Company, in the amount of $500,000, to help fund the hiring of military veterans to 
work at the County’s Parks.  After stating that this grant was unsolicited, he advised that a large 
number of grants were available and indicated that many companies would be very willing to 
help our veterans.  Chairman Diaz commended Ms. Gonzalez on the work she did along the line 
of securing grant funding and stated she was doing a great job. 

Mr. Cruz informed members that Mayor Carlos Gimenez would announce, in a ceremony 
tomorrow (9/5) at 10:00 a.m. at Gwen Cherry Park, the details of the Coca-Cola Troops for 
Fitness Program.  .  He explained that a grant from the Foundation and the National Recreation 
and Park Association to the Parks Foundation of Miami-Dade would be used to fund 13 
recreation centers throughout the County to hire veterans as instructors at fitness boot camps in 
those parks.  Mr. Cruz provided members with handouts containing additional information 
regarding the ceremony. 

In response to Chairman Diaz’ inquiry about the hiring process for the veterans, Mr. Cruz 
advised that he would research and provide that information the following day to MAB members 
for dissemination to the veteran community.   He confirmed that currently the grant was a one-
year renewable grant. 

Mr. Humes advised that his organization would be meeting with the Health Foundation of South 
Florida at the Veterans Administration Hospital to discuss a collaborative grant funding effort for 
its new Geriatric Program.  He also asked that information regarding the Community Health 
Institute’s (CHI) veterans’ succession planning be disseminated at the Boot Camp Fitness Grant 
Program Ceremony on tomorrow (9/5).   

d. Presentation by Kevin Humes 

Mr. Kevin Humes, County Commission District 1, appeared before the MAB members along 
with Mr. William Nicholas, on behalf of ABC Supply Mart and stated his presentation was 
focused on jobs.  Mr. Humes described ABC Supply Mart as a disabled veterans’ procurement 
contracting company, with Executive Order 13360, an affiliate of AbilityOne Network, and with 
the same ability to hire disabled veterans as the Goodwill Industries.   

Mr. William Nicholas appeared before the MAB and provided a brief overview of the ABC 
Supply Mart organization and noted it was a veteran-owned dedicated to hiring veterans.  He 
noted the organization partnered with other organizations to manufacture medical equipment, 
office supplies, aircraft parts, industrial parts and products.  He stated this was a pilot program 
being launched in Miami-Dade County and once established, would be implemented nationwide.  
Mr. Nicholas advised that this program was seeking the support of the Veterans Administration 
and the Federal Government. 

Mr. Humes presented a PowerPoint presentation illustrating the working relationship between 
ABC Supply and several of its partner businesses through which employment for veterans was 
obtained.  He described the organization’s primary focus on providing jobs regarding County 
Commission District 1 and the Opa-locka Airport.  Mr. Humes spoke about the Ability One 

September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 6 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 



Program and commented that organizations were interested in bringing manufacturing 
opportunities to Miami-Dade, pointing out that this could be an opportunity for veterans to be 
hired.  He advised that veterans were made aware of the job opportunities through notices posted 
at various American Legion Offices, Veterans of Foreign War facilities, Assisted Living 
Facilities, and other venues frequently visited by veterans.  

Chairman Diaz acknowledged the arrival of Mr. Ed Haynes, representing Congresswoman 
Frederica Wilson and Mr. David Blake, representing Commissioner Monestime (District 2). 

e. CAVA Project at the Miami Military Museum 

Mr. Gustavo Cruz, Director, MAB, provided a brief overview of the Cuban American Veterans 
Association (CAVA) Project, stating that the organization was planning to display a monument 
at the Miami Military Museum in recognition of the different branches of the military.  He stated 
that upon receipt of written approval from the Miami-Dade Park, Recreation and Open Spaces 
(PROS) Department, CAVA would begin fundraising efforts and noted this would take 
approximately three years to get this finalized.  

Dr. Atwood was approached by representatives of CAVA regarding an approximately 10-acre 
footprint surrounding the structure, which provided for a plethora of monumental designs 
encompassing any military group.  He explained that, because this was an historic site in a public 
institution, the following criteria must be adhered to:  1) the monument must reflect credit upon 
the Armed Forces of the United States; and 2) the monument must be safe and suitable for public 
display to all members of the community.  

 
Chairman Diaz noted he would contact the Director of the PROS Department the next day (9/4) 
regarding the approval of this project. 

 

Dr. Atwood stated that the first monument erected at the museum illustrated “The U.S.S. 
Biscayne and its crew,” a warship in World War II that was named after Biscayne Bay and which 
fought in six battles.  He advised that a diagram of the proposed monument was currently being 
circulated for MAB members review.  

6. Approval of August 7th, 2013Minutes  

It was moved by Ms. Diane Gonzalez that the August 7, 2013 Military Affairs Board meeting 
minutes be approved as presented.  This motion was seconded by Dr. Atwood, and upon being 
put to a vote, passed by a vote of 12-0. 

7. Next meeting date is scheduled for October 2nd, 2013 
 

Chairman Diaz stated, and members agreed, that the next MAB meeting was scheduled for 
October 2, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
September 4, 2013 Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes Page 7 of 8 
 Military Affairs Board  
 





Miami—Dade Military Affairs Board 
September 4, 2013 

  
Prepared by: Mary Smith-York   

EXHIBITS LIST 

 
  
 
 

NO. DATE ITEM # DESCRIPTION 

1 9/4/2013  Military Affairs Board Agenda 

2 9/4/2013  Veterans Valentine’s Dinner Dance Event Flyer 

3 9/4/2013  Media Advisory Re: Coca-Cola Company Troops For Fitness Program 

4 9/4/2013  VA Health Care and the Affordable Care Act Newsletter 

5    

6    

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

16    

17    

18    

19    

20    














	2013 09 04 MAB EXHIBITS LIST
	MAB Agenda
	2014 Veterans Valentine's Dinner Dance Event
	Coca-Cola Troops for Fitness Program Media Advisory
	VA Health Care & the Affordable Care Act Newsletter


